

# Minutes of the regular meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin: March 27, 1943. 1943

Madison, Wisconsin: Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System, 1943

https://digital.library.wisc.edu/1711.dl/NYITTKATNEHKR8H

Copyright 2008 Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System

The libraries provide public access to a wide range of material, including online exhibits, digitized collections, archival finding aids, our catalog, online articles, and a growing range of materials in many media.

When possible, we provide rights information in catalog records, finding aids, and other metadata that accompanies collections or items. However, it is always the user's obligation to evaluate copyright and rights issues in light of their own use.

#### REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF REGENTS

Madison, Wisconsin

Saturday, March 27, 1943, 9 A.M.

#### President Glover presiding

PRESENT: Regents Callahan, Cleary, Ekern, Glover, Hodglins, Holmes, Kleczka, Werner.

ABSENT: Regents Grady, Sensenbrenner.

Regent Grady was absent on account of illness. Communications were presented from Regent Sensenbrenner explaining that it was necessary for him to be in New York on Thursday, Friday and Saturday of this week.

Upon motion of Regent Werner, seconded by Regent Callahan, it was VOTED, That the minutes of the regular meeting of the Board held on February 27, 1943, be approved as sent out to the Regents.

President Glover advised that Regent Hodgkins is added to the special committee, consisting of Regents Holmes, Ekern and Sensenbrenner, appointed to cooperate with the Wisconsin Alumni Association.

#### RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE PRESIDENT

- Administration and General -
- 1. That the following rates for Elizabeth Waters Hall and Halburn House, beginning with the 1943 summer term, be approved:

#### Elizabeth Waters Hall

6-week Summer Session \$ 76.00 8-week Summer Session 102.50 Fall and Winter 220.00

### Halburn House (Room Only)

Summer Term
Fall and Winter

49.25

55.00

Adopted.

2. That the following action of the Faculty be approved:

Chemical Engineering

Sophomore Year - That in the first semester, a free elective of 2 credits be replaced by Speech 7, 2 credits.

- Senior Year (a) Due to the adoption of the three semester plan of operation, it will be impossible to give ChE 114 (Chemical Manufacture 4 cr.) as a concentrated 5 weeks course in the Summer Session, as has been done heretofore. It is recommended that until the University abandons the three semester plan of operation, ChE 114 be included as a second semester course of the Senior year.
  - (b) Eliminate ChE 115 (Industrial Organic Processes, 3 cr.) as a required course, but still offer it as an elective course.
    - (c) Introduce ChE 118 (ChE Thermodynamies, 3 cr.)
      as a required course in the first semester of
      the Senior year.
      - (d) Eliminate 6 credits of Chemical Engineering electives.
        - (e) Increase free electives to 12 credits.
        - (f) Shift ME 45 (Machine Elements) to the second semester of the Senior year.

Adopted.

3. That \$300 be allotted from the Torger Thompson fund for lectures by C.J. Hambro in the symposium on the Bases of World Peace from the Scandinavian point of view, during the summer of 1943.

Adopted.

- Agriculture -

1-1-1/1000

1. That the memorandum between the University of Wisconsin and the Farm Security Administration of the United States Department of Agriculture providing for a program for training about 100 farm boys in the third War Time Farming Course beginning March 16, 1943 be approved, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.

Adopted.

124

Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Werner, recommendations 1 to 3 under Administration and General and recommendation No. 1 under Agriculture were adopted.

#### - Degrees -

1. That upon the certification of the Registrar degrees be granted as shown in EXHIBIT A, on file.

Upon motion of Regent Werner, seconded by Regent Callahan, recommendation No. 1 under Degrees was adopted.

#### - Gifts and Grants -.

- 1. That the following gifts and grants be approved:
- (a) \$ 750.00 Allied Chemical & Dye Corporation, New York City, for the renewal of a fellowship in organic chemistry for the academic year 1943-44.
- (b) 750.00 Harshaw Chemical Company, Cleveland, Ohio, renewal of a fellowship for the study of flourine chemistry, for the fiscal year 1943-44, under the direction of Professor S. M. McElvain.
  - (c) 1,000.00 Marschall Dairy Laboratory, Inc., Madison, for the establishment of an industrial fellowship in dairy industry to carry on a study of the action of rennet on milk, 12 months, beginning March 1, 1943, under the supervision of Professors W. V. Price and H. H. Sommer, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.
  - (d) 900.00 Commercial Solvents Corporation, Terre Haute, Indiana, for the establishment of an industrial fellowship in the departments of animal husbandry and biochemistry,

for the period February 15 to June 30, 1943, under the supervision of Professors Burr O. Ross and Paul H. Phillips, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the agreement.

- (e) \$1,200.00 The Nutrition Foundation, New York City, for the renewal of the grant to carry on the study of the carotene and vitamin A content of market butters, under the supervision of Dr. W. H. Peterson, in the Department of Biochemistry, for 12 months, beginning July 1, 1943.
- (f) 4,000.00 The Nutrition Foundation, New York City, for the renewal of the grant to carry on the study of the relation of nutrition to dental caries in the monkey, under the supervision of Dr. C. A. Elvehjem, in the Department of Biochemistry, for 12 months, beginning July 1, 1943.
- (g) 2,700.00 The Nutrition Foundation, New York City, for the renewal of the grant to carry on the study of vitamin content of commercially dehydrated meats, under the supervision of Dr. C. A. Elvehjem, in the Department of Biochemistry, for 12 months, beginning april 1, 1943.

Upon motion of Regent Kleczka, seconded by Regent Cleary, recommendation No. 1 (a) to (g) under Gifts and Grants was adopted.

Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Kleczka, it was VOTED, That the actions taken by the President since the February 27, 1943 meeting of the Board be approved and made a part of the records of this meeting.

President Dykstra explained that the budget bill sub-amendment 1,A to 61,A provides for an increase in the per diem rate at the Wisconsin General Hospital to \$5.90 per day to become effective July 1, 1943. Because of the effect of bill 303,A on hospital salaries effective April 1, 1943, upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Werner, it was

VOTED, That the Emergency Board be requested to take action making this new rate effective April 1, 1943.

President Dykstra explained that the per diem rate at the Orthopedic Hospital is \$4.20 for the first twenty days and \$3.00 per day thereafter; that the Superintendent of the Hospital suggests that the provision for \$3.00 per day after

twenty days be cut out and that the rate of \$4.20 be made the regular daily rate. Upon motion of Regent Ekern, seconded by Regent Werner, it was VOTED. That the recommendation be approved.

Regent Cleary discussed the effect of Bill No. 303, A, the McIntyre bill, and stated that this bill creates a discrimination against the non-civil service state employees of educational institutions in the salary classifications covered and that the situation will be troublesome if not corrected. Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Kleczka, it was

VOTED, That any necessary and proper action should be taken to have this corrected as to the educational non-civil service employees of the University and that Regent Glover, President of the Board, and Regent Ekern, representing the

Finance Committee, be authorized and directed to act in the matter.

President Dykstra reported to the Regents on the status of the budget bill and other pending legislation was discussed.

President Dykstra presented a recommendation from Dean Christensen for the promotion of Kermit C. Berger from instructor to assistant professor of soils with a salary of \$3000, effective April 1, 1943, and a recommendation from the Superintendent of the Hospital for an increase in the salary of Leo G. Schmelzer, administrative assistant, from \$3720 to \$4000, to take effect April 1, 1943. Upon motion of Regent Holmes, seconded by Regent Kleczka, it was

VOTED, That the promotion in rank of Kermit Berger to assistant professor of soils at a salary of \$3000 be approved to become effective July 1, 1943, and that the President of the University be authorized to compensate him for services up to July 1, 1943 in an amount not to exceed \$250/ that the increase in salary for Leo G. Schmelzer be approved to become effective with the budget for 1943-44.

Regent Hodgkins, Chairman of the Constructional Development Committee, presented the following recommendation:

In anticipation of favorable action by the Legislature on the Governor's recommendations for post-war construction or in the alternative favorable action on the Regents' requests for post-war building funds, \$5000 be appropriated from Regents' Unassigned 1-E to continue the preliminary studies of plans and specifications for University buildings, including Home Economics, Dairy, Engineering, and other buildings and utility needs.

Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Callahan, the recommendation was adopted.

Upon motion of Regent Werner, seconded by Regent Kleczka, it was VOTED. That the following increases in civil service salaries made in accordance with Regent action of November 21, 1942 be approved:

Chemistry	Present Salary	Froposed Salary	Increase
Clifton G. Arnold Stock Clerk III U. S. Grant Keller	\$138.33 133.33	\$148.33 143.33	\$10.00 10.00
Wisconsin Union			
Ralph A. Arnold B. M. Helper II Walter E. Henning "	110.00	125.00 115.00	15.00 15.00

## RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE COMPTROLLER

1. That the 2-AB University Extension revolving fund budget be increased from \$471,000 to \$571,000, the increase of \$100,000 to be added to Supplies and I have produced the property Expense.

- That the director of residence halls be and is authorized to negotiate for agreements, to be executed by the Comptroller, with off-campus organizations or enterprises such as clubs, fraternities, etc. for the purpose of operating such units as auxiliary housing units for government trainees sent to the University for instruction: that this authority covers their operation by the division of residence halls on a non-profit basis for the duration or until the emergency no longer exists. This action implies that the director of residence halls is to have final supervisory authority over all housing and food service for trainees at the University. All transactions carried on under this authority to have the knowledge and approval of the Comptroller. Adopted.
- That the construction of a scullery addition to the Van Hise refectory and entrance to postal station in Mack Hall be approved at an estimated cost of \$5,500, chargeable to the 5-A Residence Halls revolving fund, and that the Comptroller be authorized to sign the contracts. Adopted. The test of the Adopted

Upon motion of Regent Kleczka, seconded by Regent Cleary, recommendations 1 to 3 of the Comptroller were adopted.

나는 나는 이 전쟁하다는 아이 전 수 있다. 바이트라는 Upon motion of Regent Cleary, seconded by Regent Werner, it was VOTED, That the supplementary budget for the 5AA Farm Short Course (room and board), totalling \$4963, be approved. This is for four weeks, March 15 to April 12, 1943, and is an additional course for the farm boys supported by the Farm Security Administration. (copy of budget on file)

grand solo fifting get a to the

Upon recommendation of the Comptroller, and upon motion of Regent Callahan, seconded by Regent Werner, the following recommendation was adopted:

That the street now called Arbor Vitae Drive, an extension of Cedar Street intersecting Monroe Street at Chapman Street, be released to the City of Madison with the provision that the city will provide curbs, gutters and maintenance and that the street will be kept open for public purposes.

The description is as follows:

A strip of land 60° wide lying Westerly and Southerly of the following described line. Beginning at an iron stake at the intersection of the NE line of Chapman Street and the SE line of Monroe Street.

Thence Southerly and Easterly along a curve, convex to the South, the radius of which is 240.0°, the chord of which bears 8 870 57° E a distance of 339.2° to an iron stake which is 240.0° Southeast of the Southeast line of Monroe Street and 240.0° Northeast of the Northeast line of Chapman Street extended Southeasterly, thence N 47° 05° E or parallel with Monroe Street a distance of 444.74°, thence along a reversed curve composed of two 12° simple curves, the first of which is convex to the North, the second convex to the South, the chord of said reversed curve bearing N 67° 37° E a distance of 341.13° to a point on the Southwest line of Block 10, Wingra Plat, City of Madison, which point is 300.8° Southeast of the Southeast line of Monroe Street, and lies on the Northeast line of Cedar Street extended Southwesterly from Knickerbocker Street.

This being a part of a parcel of land described in Volume 381, Page 394 of Deeds.

Comptroller Peterson stated that he would be absent from the office on his war work assignment until April 6, 1943.

The Regents met with the Student Board of the Wisconsin Student Association on March 26, 1943, and various members of the Student Board explained the activities of the Board. A recommendation was made with reference to assistance in the collection of a voluntary membership fee of twenty-five cents at the beginning

-7-

of each semester. Upon motion of Regent Hodgkins, seconded by Regent Kleczka, it was

VOTED. That the Cashier be authorized, as a convenience to the Student Board, to accept whatever money is paid in by the students and that the money be turned over to the student organization.

Upon motion of Regent Ekern, seconded by Regent Hodgkins, the meeting adjourned at 11:25 A.M.

M. E. McCaffrey, Secretary.

on de la company de la comp La company de la company d

The Angelia Committee of the Committee o

and the contribute that the first of the contribute

teritik itu karist manga terus malah itu berasar dan berasar dan berasar dan berasar dan berasar dan berasar d

Server of the late of the control of 

#### ACTIONS BY THE PRESIDENT

#### Since the February 27, 1943 Meeting

#### Of The

#### BOARD OF REGENTS

- 1. Richard Scalettar, university fellow in physics, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 2. William A. Wilcox, WARF apprentice in mining and metallurgy, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 3. Beryl Howard, technician in medicine, February 14, 1943.
- 4. Bernard W. Gamson, research assistant in chemical engineering, January 1, 1943.
- 5. Wayne Umbreit, assistant professor of agricultural bacteriology, January 1, 1943.
- 6. George A. Chapman, graduate assistant in Spanish, January 27, 1943.
- 7. Robert Gillespie, resident counselor at the Alpha Chi Sigma house, March 10, 1943.
- 8. Robert H. McFarland, research assistant in physics, at the close of the first semester of 1942-43. (Mr. McFarland is resigned from the Graduate School research assistantship to serve on the teaching staff of the Physics Department.)
- 9. Alfred R. Bartsch, instructor in botany, Milwaukee Center, resignation to take effect January 1, 1943 instead of January 5, 1943.
- 10. Edward A. Nordhaus, instructor in mathematics, Milwaukee Center, February 1, 1943.
- 11. Rene N. Blondeau, graduate assistant in botany, December 12, 1942.
- 12. Marvel Y. Ings, curator of geology museum, January 16, 1943.
- 13. Alice M. Martin, graduate assistant in German, January 5, 1943.
- 14. Donald S. Farner, instructor in zoology, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 15. Gaspare B. Tamburello, graduate assistant in Spanish, December 23, 1942.
- 16. Guy J. Riccio, graduate assistant in Spanish, December 23, 1942.

- 17. Claude E. Leroy, graduate assistant in Spanish, December 23, 1942,
- 18. Peter L. Gilbert, graduate assistant in Portuguese, December 23, 1942.
- 19. Charles G. Shaw, graduate assistant in botany, January 30, 1943.
- 20. Clyde S. Scanley, undergraduate assistant in chemistry, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 21. Theodore J. LaChappelle, undergraduate assistant in chemistry, at the beginning of the second semester of 1942-43.
- 22. Edward B. Osborne, graduate assistant in chemistry, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 23. Robert M. Krapp, instructor in English, January 30, 1943.
- 24. N. David Nelson, graduate assistant in mathematics, January 27, 1943.
- 25. Mrs. Joyce E. Burr, graduate assistant in history, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 26. Richard; E. Johnson, instructor in mathematics, January 27, 1943.
- 27. Reuben L. Hill, lecturer in sociology, December 31, 1942.
- 28. Ainslee Harris, graduate assistant in speech, January 26, 1943.
- 29. The resignations of the following freshmen scholars in the College of Agriculture accepted, to take effect at the close of the 1st semester of 1942-43:

Francis J. Fahey
Bernard E. Johnson
Richard L. McNall
Vincent Metcalf
Donald L. Myhre
Lowell G. Nelson
Vernon Pellett
Gordon Riter
Dean D. Voskuil
Robert A. Ward.

- 30. R. L. Murphree, assistant in genetics, January 31, 1943.
- 31. Russell W. Cumley, research associate in genetics, February 8, 1943.
- 32. E. L. Moore, assistant in agronomy, January 30, 1943.
- 33. Karl R. Johansson, assistant in agricultural bacteriology, January 27, 1943.
- 34. Muriel E. Harden, assistant in agricultural bacteriology, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1942-43.

- 35. Edwin L. Ball, assistant in plant pathology, January 26, 1943.
- 36. Russel H. Larson, assistant in dairy plant, January 31, 1943.
- 37. Carl R. Zoerb, county agricultural agent for Vilas County, December 31, 1942.
- 33. James M. Poole, erosion control assistant, January 16, 1943.
- 39. Alexander Y. Kroff, teacher of French and Latin, Pobruary 5, 1043.
- 40. Carol McMillan Reid, public relations assistant in radio education, February 1, 1943.
- 41. Eldon R. Dodge, instructor in civil engineering, January 31, 1943.
- 42. Agnes V. Albrecht, instructor in nursing, January 16, 1943.
- 43. Marion E. Kimble, instructor and chemist at the hospital) December 31, 1942.
- 44. Ethel Waisman, assistant in dietetics, December 15, 1942.
- 45. Isla L. Jepson, assistant in dietetics, December 3 , 1942,
- 46. Martha A. Lincer, assistant in dietetics, January 9, 1943.
- 47. Marguerite F. Meier, assistant in dietetics, January 1, 1943.
- 48. Otto V. Hibma, senior resident in surgery, December 31, 1942.
- 49. James L. Neller, resident in surgery, December 31, 1942.
- 50. Jagannath G. Kane, honorary scholar in chemistry, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 51. Winston L. Brembeck, non-resident scholar, at the beginning of the second semester of 1942-43.
- 52. Raymond 3. Gibson, non-resident scholar, at the beginning of the second semester of 1942-43.
- 53. Emanuel Goldberg, non-resident scholar, at the beginning of the second semester of 1942-43.
- 54. Sydney H. Shapiro, non-resident scholar, at the beginning of the second semester of 1942-43.
- 55. Asa J. Berlin, non-resident scholar, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 56. Naomi Aronson, non-resident scholar, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1942-43.

- 57. Larzette G. Hale, non-resident scholar, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 58. Shu Huang Ou, university fellow in plant pathology, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 59. Kenneth A. Oliver, university fellow in comparative literature, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 60. Ruth M. Dudley, university fellow in geology, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 61. Opal G. Blagrave, WARF assistant in agricultural bacteriology, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 62. James A. Johnson, Jr., WARF assistant in chemistry, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 63. Edward Bevilacqua, research assistant in chemistry, January 26, 1943.
- 64. Edward Dore, university scholar in French, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 65. Edith H. Green, university scholar in economics, at the beginning of the second semester of 1942-43.
- 66. Donald A. Schwartz, university scholar in economics, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 67. Julius Margolis, research assistant in economics, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 68. Peter R. Moore, research assistant in biochemistry, February 1, 1943.
- 69. Sam Lipton, research assistant in biochemistry, February 1, 1943.
- 70. Robert J. Dicke, research assistant in economic entomology, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 71. Willard G. Bouricius, research assistant in astronomy, January 27, 1943.
- 72. Don K. Smith, research assistant in speech, January 16, 1943.
- 73. Edmund D. Ayres, associate professor of electrical engineering, September 1, 1942.
- 74. Rudolf Bunkfeldt, research assistant in biochemistry, February 1, 1943.
- 75. Marion P. Robinson, non-resident scholar, at the beginning of the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 76. George F. Crikelair, graduate assistant in pathology, March 1, 1943.

- 77. Paul Herbert Curtiss, Jr., graduate assistant in pathology, March 1, 1943.
- 78. C. Raymond Hoglund, assistant in agricultural economics, January 31, 1943.
- 79. Albert E. Darlow, professor of animal husbandry, February 9, 1943.
- 80. Albert O. Hildebrandt, assistant in plant pathology, January 31, 1943.
- 81. Alice Jean Whitt, graduate assistant in education, January 30, 1943.
- 82. Valworth R. Plumb, study techniques assistant in education, December 1, 1942.
- 83. Alexander Y. Kroff, part-time instructor in French, February 4, 1943.
- 34. Philip F. Oetking, undergraduate assistant in geology, February 19, 1943.
- 85. Norris G. Davis, graduate assistant in journalism, February 22, 1943.
- 86. Elizabeth A. Sewall, computer of mathematics, January 27, 1943.
- 87. Gilman A. Hill, undergraduate assistant in physics, at the close of the 1st semester of 1942-43.
- 88. Adolf Ramirez, graduate assistant in Spanish, February 20, 1943.
- 89. Gordon Ely, regent scholar in the short course, February 19, 1943.
- 90. Jacqueline S. Muckian, junior league scholarship, October 1, 1942.
- 91. Daniel R. Miller, industrial fellow in biochemistry, February 23, 1943.
- 92. Edith P. Davis, assistant in genetics, February 17, 1943.
- 93. William J. Olson, assistant in agronomy and plant pathology, February 28, 1943.
- '94. John R. Solheim, assistant in agronomy, February 3, 1943.
- 95. Edward D. Jones, assistant in agronomy, February 1, 1943.
- 96. Merwin H. Selden, assistant in dairy plant, February 14, 1943.
- 97. Beatrice F. Bu ton, assistant in dietetics, February 2, 1943.
- 98. Edith M. Olson, assistant in dietetics, February 2, 1943.
- 99. Edward H. Kass, research assistant in medical bacteriology, February 23, 1943.

- 100. Mary Ann Payne, research assistant in zoology, February 28, 1943.
- 101. Allen E. Harbort, instructor, Naval Training School (Radio), February 13, 1943.
- 102. Wesley V. Kelley, instructor, Naval Training School (Radio), February 13, 1943.
- 103. Willis D. Garrard, part-time graduate assistant in medical bacteriology, February 28, 1943.

- 1. Susan B. Davis appointed for emergency work in the office of the Dean of Women for one month, beginning January 15, 1943, at \$250.
- 2. Helen F. Northrup, assistant librarian (rank of assistant professor) beginning March 1, 1943, at \$3,000 per annum.
- 3. Hans F. Kirchberger, lecturer in political science, 2nd semester of 1942-43, to receive the funds from the Society for Displaced Scholars.
- 4. Margaret P. Gl cksman, part-time instructor in economics, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$500.
- 5. William H. Anderson, acting instructor in economics, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$600.
- 6. Leonard H. Rall, part-time instructor in commerce, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$1,000.
- 7. John H. Shiels, lecturer in commerce, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at 5625.
- 3. Mary S. Peterson, part-time instructor in economics, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$300.
- 9. M. Leslie Spence, instructor in English, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$900.
- 10. Rebecca C. Barton, part-time instructor in English, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$375.65.
- 11. Frederick N. MacMillin, lecturer in political science, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at £750.
- 12. Myles W. Rodehaver, lecturer in sociology, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$400.
- 13. Benjamin G. Wood, lecturer in sociology, 2nd semester of 19. -43, at \$500.
- 14. Captain George L. Hudson, Jr., instructor in military science and tactics, begining October 12, 1942, without salary.
- 15. Burl Winchester, instructor in animal husbandry (part-time), February 23, 1943 to the close of the academic year 1942-43, at \$200.
- 16. Robert N. Schumann, instructor in mechanical engineering, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$600 plus \$60.
- 17. Esther M. Hemingway, curator, geological museum, beginning January 25, 1943, at \$1520.
- 13. Joseph Rosenthal, instructor in mathematics, beginning February 11, 1943. at \$1,000 for 2nd semester of 1942-43.

- 19. James S. Slotkin, lecturer in anthropology, February 23, 1943 to the close of the 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$1200.
- 20. James B. Davis, lecturer in chemistry and physics, January 27 to February 22, 1943, at \$50.
- 21. Richard E. Crane, instructor in military science and tactics, beginning Mar h 1, 1943, without salary.
- 22. Edward H. Kass, instructor in medical bacteriology (part-time), March 1 to June 30, 1943, at \$100 a month.
- 23. Gladys S. Jerome, instructor in English, Extension, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$950.
- 24. Alice L. Kelekovich, instructor in ground school subjects, February 15, 1943 to June 30, 1943, at \$200 a month.
- 25. Gilbert P. Werner, instructor, Naval Training School (Radio), February 8 to June 30, 1943, at \$150 a month for February and \$175 a month thereafter.
- 26. Mary E. O'Brien, instructor, Naval Training School (Radio), February 15 to June 30, 1943, at \$140 a month for February and March, and \$170 a month thereafter.
- 27. Marjorie L. Howdle, instructor, Naval Training School (Radio), February 1 to June 30, 1943, at \$150 a month.
- 28. Ann Lawton, apprentice assistant, office of the Dean of Women, February 15, 1943, at \$1250 per annum, 10 months' basis.
- 29. Wallace H. Borkenhagen, assistant in drawing, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$400 plus \$39.50.
- 30. Robert D. Krohn, research assistant in physics, 6 months, beginning February 15, 1943, at \$750.
- 31. James M. Hush, research assistant in physics, 6 months, beginning February 15, 1943, at \$750.
- 32. David Frisch, research assistant in physics, 6 months, beginning February 15, 1943, at \$750.
- 33. John M. Blair, research assistant in physics, 6 months, beginning February 15, 1943, at \$750.
- 34. Bernard W. Gamson, research assistant in chemical engineering, 6 months, beginning January 1, 1943, at \$125 a month ( $\frac{1}{2}$  time).
- 35. Eleanor M. Coswell, research assistant in English, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$339.50.

- 36. Rudolf Bunkfeldt, research assistant in biochemistry, February 1 to July 1, 1943, at \$300 plus emergency increase.
- 37. Mildred K. Krahnke, assistant in mathematics, Milwaukee Center, 2nd semester, part-time, at \$300,
- 33. The following persons appointed research assistants in economics for the 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$339.50 each:

# Edith Green Alex Lipsman.

- 39. Edward M. Bevilacqua, technical assistant in chemistry, February 1, 1943 to February 1, 1944, at \$1800.
- 40. The following persons appointed assistants in dietetics, beginning February 1, 19 3, at \$115 each per month plus lodging:

#### Marjorie Herr Ruth Flumerfelt.

- 41. David G. Soergel, assistant in electrical engineering, February, March, April and May, 1943, at \$35 a month.
- 42. George F. Crikelair, graduate assistant in pathology, 3 months, beginning March 1, 1943, at \$100 a month.
- 43. Paul H. Curtiss, Jr., graduate assistant in pathology, 3 months, beginning March 1, 1943, at \$100 a month.
- 44. George Winterstein, assistant in dairy plant, January 27 to May 31, 1943, at \$250.34.
- 45. Wilma Menaker, assistant in rural sociology, February 1 to June 30, 1943, at \$175.00.
- 46. Niels S. Hansen, assistant in rural sociology, February 1 to June 30, 1943, at \$200.
- 47. Ella M. George, assistant in rural sociology, February 1 to June 30, 1943, at \$200.
- 43. Willard Notbohm, assistant in drawing, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$200 plus \$39.50.
- 49. Clarence R. Po sell, assistant in drawing, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$200 plus \$39.50.
- 50. Edward R. Rawson, assistant in drawing, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$200 plus \$39.50.

- 51. Lewis W. Rose, assistant in drawing, 2nd semester, 1942-43, at \$200 plus \$39.50.
- 52. Karl O. Wegener, assistant in drawing, 2nd semester, 1942-43, at \$200 plus \$39.50.
- 53. Verlin H. Baumgarth, assistant in drawing, 2nd semester, 1942-43, at \$200 plus \$39.50.
- 54. Laurence E. Norton, graduate assistant in speech, 2nd semester, 1942-43, at \$100 plus \$39.50.
- 55. Pvt. Sherman E. Olson, assistant in military science and tactics, beginning January 28, 1943, at \$12.50 a month.
- 56. Pvt. George A. Schmitt, assistant in military science and tactics, beginning January 23, 1943, at \$12.50 a month.
- 57. Jean H. Fleming, assistant in radio education, February 1 to July 1, 1943, at \$135.
- 58. Ardith H. Boekeloo, assistant in veterinary science, January 27, 1943 to the close of the academic year 1942-43, at \$339.50.
- 59. Donald W. Chamberlain, assistant in horticulture, January 27 to June 30, 1943, at \$774.
- 60. Alta P. Goede, assistant in home economics, February 1 to June 30, 1943, at \$339.50.
- 61. Deane C. Arny, assistant in plant pathology and agronomy, March 1 to June 30, 1943, at \$500.
- 62. J. Floyd Davis, assistant in agricultural bacteriology, January 27, 1943 to the close of the academic year 1942-43, at \$339.50.
- 63. Claire R. Guttentag, assistant in agricultural bacteriology, January 27, 1943 to the close of the academic year 1942-43, at \$339.50.
- 64. The following persons appointed graduate assistants in physics for the 2nd semester of 1942-43, each to receive the amount indicated below:

Robert L. Loftness \$375 plus \$39.50 William T. Dyall 375 plus \$39.50 Budd Roswell Russell 321.43 plus \$39.50 Richard Scalettar 321.43 plus \$39.50.

65. Homer A. Stephens, graduate assistant in botany, 2nd semester, 1942-43, at \$375 plus \$39.50.

- 66. Robert H. McFarland, graduate assistant in physics, 2nd semester, 1942-43, at \$321.43 plus \$39.50.
- 67. Louise S. Blanco, graduate assistant in Spanish, January 5, 1943 to the close of the 1st semester of 1942-43, at \$103.57.
- 63. Margaret E. Lorenz, graduate assistant in Spanish, January 5, 1943 to the close of the academic year 1942-43, at \$503.57 plus \$39.50.
- 69. Josephine Buffa, graduate assistant in Spanish, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$400 plus \$39.50.
- 70. Teresa DeSantis, assistant in physical therapy, beginning February 15, 1943, at \$125 a month.
- 71. The following persons appointed graduate assistants in classics for the 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$150 each:

Margaret L. Peirce Bary G. Wingersky.

72. The following ersons appointed assistants in chemistry for the 2nd semester of 19-2-43:

Robert O. Johnson Undergraduate \$250 plus \$39.50 James A. Johnson Graduate 325 plus \$39.50.

- 73. Arthur E. Jackson, undergraduate assistant in commerce, 2nd semester, 1942-43, at \$150.
- 74. The following persons appointed graduate assistants in economics, 2nd semester of 1942-43:

 Karl A. Boedecker
 \$562.50 plus \$39.50

 Mary Klemm
 375.00 plus \$39.50

 June W. Owen
 437.50 plus \$39.50

 Lore L. E. Traugott
 250.00 plus \$39.50

75. The following persons appointed graduate assistants in English for the 2nd semester of 1942-43:

Eleanor G. M. Smith \$400.00 plus \$39.50.

Jean B. Kern 375.65

Louise C. Dwyer Fulcher 600.00.

- 76. Doris B. Moore, assistant in the School for Workers, February 1 to June 30, 1943, at \$225.
- 77. Clay G. Ashton, assistant in mechanics, February, March, April and May 1943, at \$60 a month plus \$39.50 emergency increase.

- 78. Glenn E. Visgar, reader in commerce, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$45.
- 79. L. Harold Hueschen, reader in commerce, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$15.
- 80. Myles W. Rodehaver, reader in sociology and anthropology, 1st semester of 1942-43, at 50¢ an hour, total not to exceed \$10.
- 81. Francis V. Hoffman, undergraduate assistant in geology, February 22, 1943 to the close of the 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$161.74.
- 32. Philip F. Oetking, undergraduate assistant in geology, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$200.
- 83. Rae W. Evans, graduate assistant in mathematics, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$200.
- 84. David Saxon, undergraduate assistant in physics, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$100.
- 85. Russell H. Johnson, undergraduate assistant in physics, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$150.
- 86. Harriet R. Schieber, undergraduate assistant in Spanish, February 15, 1943 to the close of the 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$172.17.
- 87. Timothy Brown, Jr., undergraduate assistant in Spanish, February 14, 1943 to the close of the 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$172.17.
- 83. Kathryn J. Hansen London, undergraduate assistant in Spanish, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$200 plus \$39.50.
- 89. G. Arnold Chapman, graduate assistant in Spanish, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$420.87 plus \$39.50.
- 90. Kathleen M. Joyce, graduate assistant in Spanish, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$664.13.
- 91. Bertha K. Winterstein, assistant in dairy plant, February 13 to June 30, 1943, at \$272.50.
- 92. Alex N. Klose, assistant county agricultural agent in Milwaukee County, February 8 to June 30, 1943, at \$332.50.
- 93. Mrs. Willa I. Guss, research assistant in chemistry, March 1 to July 1, 1943, at \$200 a month.
- 94. Leon Baxter Cobb, honorarium for assembling radio equipment in the operating room, Naval Training School, January 1943, \$163.50.
- 95. Magdalen Dunca, substitute in English, March 1 to June 30, 1943, at \$172 a month.

- 96. William R. Knight, junior resident in obstetrics and gynecology, beginning Januar 1, 1943, at \$25 a month plus 3 meals.
- 97. Rachel B. Ewbank, teacher of English, Wisconsin High School, February 4 to May 28, 1943, at \$100 a month.
- 93. Kunda Luzenska, part-time teacher of French and Latin, February 5, 183 to the close of the academic year 1942-43, at \$106.65. (Wisconsin High School)
- 99. Maurice O. Graff, to act as coordinator of the C.P.T. program in LaCrosse, December 1942 and January 1943, not to exceed \$75,00.
- 100. Albert E. May, to act as coordinator and teacher in the C.P.T. program in Racine, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$375.
- 101. Carlyle Godske, to assist in administration of secondary CAANTS 43-E program at Racine, January and February 1943, not to exceed \$65.
- 102. Frances Zimmerman, to assist in the administration of the elementary C.P.T. program at Oshkosh, November and December 1942, not to exceed \$50.
- 103. Carlyle Godske, to assist in the administration of the C.P.T. program at Racine, October and November 1942, not to exceed \$30.
- 104. Elida P, Henry, to assist with the ESMWT program in Discrict 5, February 1 to June 30, 1943, at \$25 a month,
- 105. The following persons appointed to write correspondence courses in aeronautics, s lary \$100 each:

M. N. Van Sant George H. Roseman M. H. Spicer January 1943 February 1943 February 1943.

- 106. Joseph Palmeri, to read correspondence study papers in Romance languages, January 1 to June 30, 1943, not to exceed \$100.
- 107. John R. Menard, to read correspondence study assignments in aeronautics on a fee basis, February 1 to June 30, 1943, not to exceed \$125.
- 108. Evelyn H. Jens, to read correspondence study courses in business correspondence, February 1 to June 30, 1943, not to exceed \$130.
- 109. E. G. Meiter, to give a special lecture in industrial safety engineering at Park Falls, February 1943, not to exceed \$15.
- 110. A. W. Swain, to give a special lecture in industrial safety engineering at Park Falls, February 1943, not to exceed \$15.

- 111. Viola Kloiber, to assist in the administration of the elementary C.P.T. program at Oshkosh, November and December 1942, not to exceed \$50.
- 112. Elizabeth Pollack, to assist in the administration of the C.P.T. program in LaCrosse, December 1942 and January 1943, not to exceed \$35.
- 113. Forrest R. Polk, to act as coordinator and teach mathematics, calisthenics and military science discipline in the C.P.T. program at Oshkosh, November and December 1942, not to exceed \$300.
  - 114. Jacob Spies, to act as local administrator for the ESM.T program in Sheboygan, January 1 to June 30, 1943, not to exceed \$25 a month.
- 115. Elaine B. Brooks, to assist in the ESMWT program, Madison, January 1 to June 30, 19.3, at \$95 a month.
- 116. The following persons appointed to teach the courses indicated below, the salary not to exceed the amount shown:
  - E. A. Abendroth, structural theory, Part II, Milwaukee, 14 weeks, January 22, 1943, \$175.
  - George Abendroth, practical engineering problems, Part II, Milwaukee, 14 weeks, January 18, 1943, \$175.
  - Roald H. Amundson, practical engineering mathematics, Sec. I and II, 24 weeks, January 18, 1943, \$350.
  - Alvin Anderson, fundamentals of radio, Part 1, ESMWT, Shorewood, 4 weeks, January 25, 1943, \$135.
  - Lloyd Arnold, code in the C.P.T. program, LaCrosse, December 1942 and January 1943, \$60.
  - Norman Bailey, social science 203, Ladysmith, 10 weeks, January 22, 1943, \$135.

    New England literature, Greenwood, 10 weeks, January 12, 1943, \$280.
  - David W. Bloodgood, drill, ceremonies, military science and discipline, CAAWTS secondary program, Milwaukee, January 22, 1943 to March 19, 1943, \$225.
  - Truman G. Blos:, engineering physics, ESMNT program, Edgerton, 12 weeks, December 9, 1942, \$360.
  - Elise Bohstedt, German 1b and 2b, Green Bay, 2nd semester of 1942-43, \$400.
  - J. C. Brockert, geography of Latin America, Fennimore, 17 weeks, February 18, 1943, \$300.

#### 116. (Continued)

Walter Burghardt, traffic management, shipping procedure, ESMWT, Milwaukee, 14 weeks, January 20, 1943, \$175

Edna Carlsten, art 105, Wausau, 16 weeks, January 26, 1943, \$200. G. Arnold Chapman, practical Spanish 51, Madison, 17 weeks, February 10, 1943, \$150.

Helen D. Chapman, mathematics 2-A, Wausau, 17 weeks, January 25, 1943, \$250.

Earl W. Chattin, fundamentals of radio, Part I, ESMWT, Merrill, 16 weeks, November 16, 1942, \$240,

Harold G. Cooke, Jr., chemistry (quiz and laboratory) 1B, Milwaukee, 17 weeks, February 1, 1943, \$260.

Milford A. Cowley, physics and mathematics, C.P.T. program, LaCrosse, December 1942 and January 1943, \$198.

Justin A. Deubel, radio technical training, ESM/T, Milwaukee, 16 weeks, February 15, 1943, \$430.

Kathryn Dowse, civil air regulations, C.P.T. program, Racine, October and November 1942, \$30;

civil air regulations, Racine, CAAWTS 42H session, January and February 1943, \$30.

John Drydyk, general service aircraft, Racine, CAAWTS 42H, January and February 1943, \$50;

general service aircraft, C.P.T. program, Racine, October and November 1942, \$50.

James F. Duncan, physics, elementary C.F.T. program, Oshkosh, November and December 1942, \$163.

Stanley Fisher, code and has charge of equipment in the Racine CAAWTS
42H session, January and February 1942, \$30;
code in the CAAWTS secondary 43E program, Recine,
January and February 1943, \$90;
code and equipment, C.P.T. program, Racine, October
and November 1942, \$80.

William J. Fraser, secondary code, general service and operation of aircraft, CAAWTS program in Milwaukee, February, March and April 1943, \$245; aviation 700 and 701, Milwaukee, 2nd semester, 1942-43, \$360.

John C. Georgian, applied elasticity, Milwaukee, 1 meeting, February 1943, \$10.

Theo R. Glaubitz, design of jigs and fixtures, Part II, ESMWT, Milwaukee, 14 weeks, January 1, 1943, 175.

Maurice O. Graff, rural sociology and economics, Tomah, 16 weeks, January 23, 1943, \$300.

R. J. Grant, civil air regulations, aircraft identification and meteorology, C.P.T. program, Oshkosh, November and December 1942, \$236.

Leonard Haas, social science 203, Ladysmith, 10 weeks, January 22, 1943, 9135.

F. H. Hake, principles of education, Alma, 17 weeks, February 12, 1943, \$200.

Edwin G. Halbert, navigation, meteorology, aircraft identification, theory of flight, aircraft engines, secondary CAAWTS program, Milwaukee, January 12 to March 19, 1943, \$630.

#### 116. (Continued)

William A. Hambley, general grey iron foundry metallurgy, ESMWT, Milwaukee, 14 weeks, February 10, 1943, \$175.

Gertrude Hansen, Latin American geography 101, Wausau, 16 weeks, January 26, 1943, \$200.

Arthur G, Hoff, civil air regulations and navigation, C.P.T. program, LaCrosse, December 1942 and January 1943, \$260.

Stephen J. Jambretz, design of jigs and fixtures, Part I, ESMUT, Milwaukee, 14 weeks, January 20, 1943, \$175.

Herbert Jongman, military administration, C.P.T. program, Madison, December 1942 and January 1943, \$30.

Henry Jorgensen, heat-power engineering, ESMNT, Milwaukee, 14 weeks, January 21, 1943, \$175.

John F. Klement, non-ferrous metals and alloys, Sections 1 and 2, ESMWT, Milwaukee, 14 weeks, February 10, 1943, \$350.

Norman E. Knutzen, English 215, romantic movement, Wausau, 16 weeks, January 26, 1943, \$250.

R. M. Kolf, athletics, drill, ceremonies and code in elementary C.P.T. program, Oshkosh, November and December 1942, \$265.

Albert F. LaMieux, fundamentals of radio, parts I and II, Green Bay, 16 weeks, December 1, 1942, 4430.

John S. Langwill, production planning and control, ESMVT, Milwaukee, 12 weeks, January 21, 1943, \$120.

William Laux, aircraft identification, C.P.T. program, LaCrosse, December 1942 and January 1943, \$36.

Graham Lawton, economic geography 100, Chippewa Falls, 16 weeks, February 1, 1943, \$225.

Robert E. Leahy, electrical controls, 2 sections, ESMWT, Milwaukee, 14 weeks, January 18, 1943, \$350.

Eugene Limpel, radio technician training, ESMMT, Milwaukee, 8 weeks, April 12, 1943, \$240.

Robert A. Lowe, time and motion study, part I, ESMNT, Milwaukee, 12 weeks, \$225, January 18, 1943.

Fred A. Lucas, safety engineering war training, ESMWT, Milwaukee, 16 weeks, January 27, 1943, \$240.

Lewis K. McElhaney, procurement procedures under priorities regulations, Parts 1 and II, Milwaukee, 12 weeks, January 22, 1943, \$50.

Katherine W. McMullen, English 30B, Green Bay, 17 weeks, January 25, 1943, \$300.

Derryl Malkow, military training, science, administration and aircraft identification, C.P.T. program, Madison, December 1942 and January 1943, §276.

Frank R. Maronek, die design for metal stampings, ESMWT, Milwaukee, 14 weeks, January 20, 1943, \$350.

Leon Miller, atheltics, C.P.T. program, LaCrosse, December 1942 and January 1943, \$72.

Russell Moberly, pre-flight, Janesville, 16 weeks, December 9, 1942, \$300.

- Sylvester E. Mueller, general steel foundry metallurgy, ESMNT, Milwaukee, 14 weeks, February 12, 1943, \$175.
- Robert Nohr, Jr., physical training, C.P.T. program, Madison, December 1942 and January 1943, \$120.
- Kenneth G. O'Gorman, procurement procedures under priorities regulations, Parts I and II, Milwaukee, 12 weeks, January 22, 1943, \$50.
- Marvin Podeweltz, military education, military discipline, physical training, CAAWTS 43-C, Stevens Point, Movember 11, 1942 to February 2, 1943, \$163.
- Charles G. Polacheck, meteorology, CAAWTS 42H, Racine, January and February 1943, \$240;
  Theory of flight and aircraft, and meteorology, January and February 1943, \$240, Racine;
  meteorology, C.P.T. program, Racine, CAAWTS 43B, October and November 1942, \$240.
- Hazel Ramharter, remedial reading, Eau Claire, 16 weeks, February 10, 1943, \$200.
- William F. Raney, modern European history 2-B, Green Bay, 17 weeks, January 27, 1943, 9225.
- Kenneth Reed, service and operation of aircraft, C.P.T. program, LaCrosse, December 1942 and January 1943, \$50.
- Arthur Ritt, physical training, C.P.T. program, Racine, October and November 1942, 436; physical training, CANWTS 42H, Racine, January and February 1943, 436.
- Arthur Romeis, engineering sketching and advanced blueprint reading, ESMMT, Chippewa Falls, 12 weeks, December 9, 1942, \$180.
- Kenneth Sarles, military education, military discipline and aircraft identification, C.P.T. program, Racine, October and November 1942, \$96; military education, military discipline, aircraft identification, CAAWTS secondary 43E, Racine, \$90; military training and science, and aircraft identification, January and February 1943, CAAWTS 42H, Racine, \$132.
- Maurice C. Sayre, code, C.P.T. program, Madison, December 1942 and January 1943, \$30.
- George Scott, military training, science, and discipline, U.F.r. program, LaCrosse, December 1942 and January 1943, \$96.
- Martin J. Seibert, office management, ESMAT, Milwaukee, 14 weeks, January 20, 1943, \$175.
- Sadie M. Shell w, advanced industrial psychology, Part II, psychological testing in business and industry, ESPOT, Milwaukee, 12 weeks, January 18, 1943, \$360.
- Theodore W. Simester, plant protection for defense industries, ESMAT, West Bend, 12 weeks, October 3, 1942, \$180.

#### 116. (Continued)

George A. Smart, die design, hot forging, Milwaukee, February 1943, \$10. Ferrel Smith, code, C.P.T. program, Madison, December 1942 and January 1943, \$30.

Wallace Stangel, fundamentals of Radio, Part I and II, ESMWT, Green Bay, 16 weeks, December 1, 1942, \$960.

Kathleen Stanley, meteorology, C.P.T. program, LaCrosse, December 1942 and January 1943, \$120.

Charles Sturtzen, radio technician training, ESMWT, Milwaukee, 3 weeks, April 12, 1943, \$240.

Raymond J. Suchy, aeronautical training for teachers in secondary schools, Milwaukee, 12 weeks, February 13, 1943, \$10; physics 1b and 52 (Lab.), Milwaukee, 2nd semester, 1942-43, \$225.

Chloe E. Tilden, Spanish 1b, Wausau, 17 weeks, January 25, 1943, (400. Elizabeth Tomek, civil air regulations and navigation, C.P.T. program, Madison, December 1942 and January 1943, \$300.

F. Dier Trinknell, government contracts and accounting procedures, Part II, ESMWT, Milwaukee, 14 weeks, January 21, 1943, \$175.

Paul L. Trump, mathematics for high school teachers, course A, ESMWT, Madison, 18 weeks, January 5, 1943, \$540.

Bjarne Ullsvick, mathematics for high school teachers, ESMVT, Eau Claire, December 21, 1942 to January 2, 1943, \$320.

Rudolf Voigt, German 15, Milwaukee, 2nd semester, 1742-43, \$30. Dorothy Waite, ancient history 103, Spooner, 17 weeks, February 5, 1943, \$275.

Carl Wamser, navigation, C.P.T. program, Racine, October and November 1942, \$180; aircraft engine operation and navigation, CAAWTS, Racine, January and February 1943, \$360; navigation, Racine, CAAWTS 42H, January and February, 1943, \$60.

Carol Anne R. Welch, introduction to pre-flight aeronautics, meteorology, navigation, CAAWTS program, Milwaukee, 12 weeks, February 18, 1943, \$215.

John C. White, fuels and combustion, ESMWT, Stoughton, 12 weeks, December 9, 1942, \$130.

William P. Wichman, code in the Navy CAAWTS program, Stevens Point, November 11, 1942 to February 6, 1943, \$60.

Ed. Wickman, navigation and general service aircraft, elementary C.P.T. program, Oshkosh, November and December 1942, \$230.

Howard W. Wiles, Diesel engines, ESMWT, Milwaukee, 14 weeks, January 20, 1943, \$175.

Warren Wilkerson, physics, C.P.T. program, Racine, October and November 1942, \$90; physics, CAAWTS 42H, Racine, January and February 1943, \$90.

J. Scott Wilson, procurement procedures under priorities regulations,
Parts I and II, Milwaukee, 12 weeks, January 22, 1943,
\$50.

Harry Wright, general service aircraft, CAAWTS, Stevens Point, November 11, 1942 to January 6, 1943, \$10.

The following persons appointed Freshmen scholars in the College of Agriculture, 2nd semester of 1942-43, stipend \$50 each:

> Paul M. Bessey Wesley A. Kron Robert C. Leverich Alois J. Lupa Peter H. Pierce Calvin F. Pomerening Donald G. Sprain Stanley J. Ursic.

- 118. Lester Glewen, Regent scholar in the College of Agriculture, 2nd semester of 1942-43, \$100. 119. Martin H. Klein, industrial fellow in biochemistry, February 1 to June Edward J. Herbst, industrial fellow in biochemistry, February 1 to 30, 1943, \$250.
- May 31, 1943, \$200.
- George Kitzes, industrial fellow in biochemistry, February 1, 1943 to January 31, 1944, \$840.
- 122. Martha K. Leisk, industrial fellow in biochemistry, February 1, 1943 to January 31, 1944, \$1200.
- Theodore H. Meltzer, industrial fellow in biochemistry, February 1, 1943 123. to June 30, 1943, \$339.50. Heyden when Co
- Curtis B. Thorne, industrial fellow in biochemistry, February 1 to June 124. 30, 1943, \$339.50.
- 125. The following persons appointed non-resident (graduate) scholars for the 2nd semester of 1942-43:

Jean St. Clair Staehling Sylvester D. Luby Mildred Southwick Laurence E. Norton Chuang Wang Gilbert J. Stork.

- 126. Shu Huang Ou, granted the status of international fellow for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 127. Donald A. Schwartz, university fellow, 2nd semester of 1942-43, \$339.50.
- 123. Albert C. Hildenbrandt, assigned fellow in plant pathology, 2nd semester of 1942-43, \$339.50.
- 129. Edwin L. Ball, assigned fellow in botany, 2nd semester of 1942-43, at \$339.50.

- 130. Joseph L. McKibben, post-doctorate fellow in physics, February 15 to August 15, 1943, at \$225 a month.
- 131. Alfred O. Hanson, post-doctorate fellow in physics, February 15 to August 15, 1943, at \$200 a month.
- 132. The following persons appointed University scholars for the 2nd semester of 1942-43:

Naomi Aronson	\$125
Larzette G. Hale	125
Marion P. Robinson	125
Edward S. Spoerl	250.

- 133. Howard C. E. Johnson, resident counselor at the Alpha Chi Sigma house, beginning March 10, 1943, without salary from the University,
- 134. Harvey J. Weavers, county agricultural agent for Manitowoc County, (assistant professor), beginning January 1, 1943, at \$1900 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 135. Ethel V. Hill, county home agent for Clark County, beginning January 25, 1943, at \$1500 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 136. Karen Van Derzee, county home agent for Manitowoc County, February 1 to December 31, 1943, at \$1500 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 137. Irene D. Schulist, county 4-H and home agent for Oconto County, beginning January 1, 1943, at \$1500 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 138. Russell F. Johannes, county agricultural agent for Vilas County, beginning February 23, 1943, at \$1700 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 139. Virginia P. Houtz, county home agent for Richland County, January 1, 1943 to February 28, 1943, at \$1500 per annum, 12 months basis.
- 140. Edith M. Brevig, county home agent for Vernon County, beginning January 1, 1943, at \$1500 per annum, 12 momths' basis.

#### SALARY AND SERVICE ADJUSTMENTS:

- 1. John Stiehl, appointed to teach fundamentals of radio, salary increased from \$480 to not to exceed \$600.
- 2. Wilbur B. Bridgmen, appointed to read Army Institute study papers in chemistry, mathematics and physics courses, salary increased from \$75 to not to exceed \$200.
- 3. H. P. Doke, appointed to read Army Institute study papers in engineering courses, salary increased from \$100 to not to exceed \$200.
- 4. Edith R. Dopp, appointed to read Army Institute study papers in commercial subjects, salary increased from \$100 to not to exceed \$250.
- 5. Robert Erickson, appointed to read Army Institute study papers in engineering courses, salary increased from \$50 to not to exceed \$100.
- 6. J. C. Gibson, Sr., appointed to read Army Institute study papers in commerce courses on a fee basis, salary increased from \$75 to \$150.
- 7. C. F. Peters, appointed to read Army Institute study papers in engineering courses, salary increased from \$75 to not to exceed \$150.
- 8. W. N. Smith, appointed to read Army Institute study papers in mathematics courses, salary increased from \$500 to not to exceed \$700.
- 9. Mrs. C. Wright Thomas, appointed to read Army Institute study papers in English courses, salary increased from \$350 to \$500.
- 10. LaVerne Tillman, assistant in the field office at Appleton, salary increased from \$75 to \$35 a month, beginning January 1, 1943.
- 11. Doris H. Moore, assistant in the School for workers, salary adjusted from \$225 to \$241.45, February 1 to June 30, 1943 (emergency increase).
- 12. Angie Connor, resident in pediatrics, appointment to take effect February 1, 1943 instead of August 1, 1942, at \$50 plus 3 meals and lodging.
- 13. Robert Erickson, appointed to read Armed Forces Institute study papers in engineering courses, salary increased from \$50 to not to exceed \$200.
- 14. Leo S. Baldwin, appointed to read Army Institute study papers in engineering drawing courses, salary increased from \$150 to \$550.
- 15. Verna M. Gabryshak, assistant in the field office, salary increased from \$110 to \$125 a month, beginning February 1, 1943.
- 16. Mrs. Mabel D. Schneider, technical assistant at the University Press, salary increased from \$110 to \$125 a month, beginning February 1, 1943.

#### SALARY AND SERVICE ADJUSTMENTS:

- 17. Henry A. Pochmann, professor of English, salary, \$2,325, transferred from the College of Letters and Science to the Graduate School for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 13. Farrington Daniels, professor of chemistry, salary, \$3,262.50, transferred from the College of Letters and Science to the Graduate School for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 19. Elizabeth Brandeis Raushenbush, lecturer in economics, salary increased by \$750 for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 20. Albert P. Duhamel, graduate assistant in English, salary increased by \$120 for the period November 2, 1942 to January 26, 1943.
- 21. Emerson C. Shuck, graduate assistant in English, salary increased by \$200 for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 22. Theodore T. Dombras, graduate assistant in English, salary increased by \$200 for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 23. The salaries of the following graduate assistants in history increased by the amounts indicated below for the 2nd semester of 1942-43:

Robert J. Rayback	\$62.50
Clifford C. Montgomery	62.50
Darrell A. Parker	125.00
Richard E. Gustafson	125.00.

- 24. Kazimierz Strzemienski, post doctorage fellow in soils, salary adjusted at \$750 for the period February 1 to July 1, 1943.
- 25. Ruth A. Evans, assistant in agronomy and plant pathology, salary adjusted at \$375 for the period February 1 to June 30, 1943.
- 26. Karl R. Johansson, assistant in agricultural bacteriology, salary adjusted at \$339.50 for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 27. Helen I. Stetzer, county home agent for Brown County transferred to Eau Claire County, beginning February 15, 1943, salary \$1600 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 23. Ludvig C. Larson, assistant professor of electrical engineering, to receive \$200 for services rendered to the Standards Laboratory, December 24, 1942 to January 24, 1943.
- 29. George C. Colovos, technical assistant in chemistry, salary increased to \$1800 per annum, 12 months' basis, beginning February 1, 1943.
- 30. Walter M. Livie, undergraduate assistant in commerce, salary reduced from \$125 to \$100 for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.

#### SALARY AND SERVICE ADJUSTITENTS:

- 31. T. Hoyle Lee, graduate assistant in mathematics, salary increased by \$36.10 for the month of January 1943.
- 32. Herbert P. Evans, professor of mathematics, salary increased by \$40 for the month of February 1943.
- 33. Gardiner H. London, graduate assistant in Spanish, salary increased by \$27.14 for the 1st semester of 1942-43.
- 34. Isabel M. Fernandez, graduate assistant in Spanish, salary increased by \$36.19 for the 1st semester of 1942-43.
- 35. George A. Chapman, graduate assistant in Spanish, salary increased by \$36.19 for the 1st semester of 1942-43.
- 36. Pauline Ann Temkin, graduate assistant in Spanish, salary increased by \$36.19 for the 1st semester of 1942-43.
- 37. Mary-Eleanor Maule, graduate assistant in Spanish, salary increased by \$18.09 for the 1st semester of 1942-43.
- 33. William L. Hageman, appointed to read Army Institute study papers in telephone and telegraph courses, salary increased from \$50 to not to exceed \$100.
- 39. Robert E. Borchardt, assistant in drawing and descriptive geometry, salary adjusted by \$400 plus \$39.50 for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 40. James H. Shaw, industrial fellow in biochemistry, salary adjusted at \$300 for the period March 1 to June 30, 1943.
- 41. Janet R. McCarter, assistant professor of agricultural bacteriology, salary adjusted at \$1,022 for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 42. Kunda Luzenska, instructor in French, transferred from full-time to half-time, beginning February 5, 1943; salary \$513.39 for the period.
- 43. Richard E. Gustafson, graduate assistant in history, salary increased by \$107.61 for the balance of the 2nd semester, to take effect February 15, 1943.
- 44. Walter A. Steigleman, graduate assistant in journalism, salary increased by \$120 (\$30 a month), beginning February 23, 1343.
- 45. Richard V. Andree, graduate assistant in mathematics, salary increased by \$450 for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 46. Charles M. Beardsley, graduate assistant in mathematics, salary increased by \$450 for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 47. T. Hoyle Lee, graduate assistant in mathematics, salary increased by \$200 for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.

#### SALARY AND SERVICE ADJUSTMENTS:

- 48. Theodore E. Rodd, graduate assistant in mathematics, salary increased by \$250 for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 49. Robert C. Simpson, Jr., graduate assistant in mathematics, salary increased by \$400 for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 50. Will W. Moody, graduate assistant in sociology and anthropology, salary increased by \$62.50 for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 51. Ana Maria Carner, graduate assistant in Spanish, emergency increase to be discontinued January 27, 1943.
- 52. Gardiner H. London, graduate assistant in Spanish, salary increased by \$132.61 for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 53. Isabel M. Fernandez, graduate assistant in Spanish, salary increased by \$200 for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 54. Rodolfo O. Floripe, graduate assistant in Spanish, salary increased by \$163.04 for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 55. Janet F. Lillegren, graduate assistant in Spanish, salary increased by \$172.17 for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 56. Meriel R. McAllister, graduate assistant in Spanish, salary increased by \$200 for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 57. Mary-Eleanor Maule, graduate assistant in Spanish, salary increased by \$230 for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 58. Edwin C. Munro, graduate assistant in Spanish, salary increased by \$129.13 for the 2nd semester of 1942-43.
- 59. Elizabeth C. Davies, county home agent, transferred from Iowa County to Sauk County, beginning February 15, 1943, salary \$1500 per annum, 12 months' basis.
- 60. R. Ralph Benedict, assistant professor of electrical engineering, to receive \$54 for extra services during January and February 1943 for testing dielectric factors of porcelain.
- 61. Leon B. Cobb, instructor, Naval Training School (Radio), salary increased from \$150 to \$200 a month, beginning February 1, 1943.

#### PROMOTIONS:

- 1. Oscar B. Ross, promoted from instructor to assistant professor of animal husbandry, February 23, 1943, salary at the rate of \$3,000 per academic year.
- 2. Burton H. Colvin, promoted from graduate assistant to instructor in mathematics, January 27, 1943, salary \$1,000 for the 2nd semester of 1942-43. (Salary increase, \$200 for the semester.)

#### LEAVES OF ABSENCE:

- 1. Churchill Eisenhart, assistant professor of mathematics, January 5 to March 1, 1943, without pay, to work on a war project.
- 2. Leland C. DeVinney, associate professor of sociology, 2nd semester of 1942-43, without pay.
- 3. Ivan S. Sokolnikoff, professor of machematics, January 15 to March 1, 1943, without pay, for government work.
- 4. H. Scudder Mekeel, associate professor of anthropology, 2nd semester of 1942-43, without salary.
- 5. Don S. Anderson, associate professor of agricultural economics, 2nd sem., 1942-43, without salary, to continue work with OPM.
- 6. Norman P. Neal, associate professor of agronomy and genetics, with pay for the 6th payment of the academic year and without pay for the 7th payment of the academic year, to go to Uruguay on a special assignment.
- 7. John A. Logan, assistant professor of civil engineering, January 15 to July 30, 1943, without pay.
- 8. John J. Halbert, resident in medicine, January 1, 1943, without pay, for military service.
- 9. Myron A. Myers, senior resident in surgery, January 1, 1943, without pay, for military service.
- 10. Dennis W. Watson, research associate in agricultural bacteriology, February 1 to June 30, 1943, without pay.
- 11. Louis Kaplan, assistant librarian, March 5, 1943 to the close of the academic year 1942-43, without pay.
- 12. Churchill Eisenhart, assistant professor of mathematics, February 23 to July 1, 1943, without pay.
- 13. Richard P. Feynman, visiting assistant professor of physics, 2nd semester of 1942-43, without pay.
- 14. George W. Hill, associate professor of rural sociology, February 16, 1943 to the close of the academic year 1942-43, without pay. (Continuation of leave with the Farm Security Administration)
- 15. Aleda E. Stolen, instructor in nursing, January 29, 1943, without pay, for military service.
- 16. Shirley R. Watson, instructor in nursing, February 1, 1943, without pay. for military service.

#### LEAVES OF ABSENCE:

- 17. Frank L. Kozelka, toxicologist, Wisconsin General Hospital, February 1, 1943, without salary, for military service.
- 18. Ivan S. Sokolnikoff, professor of mathematics, leave of absence to be terminated February 12, 1943 instead of March 1, 1943, salary for February \$176.13.
- 19. William W. Howells, assistant professor of anthropology, February 23, 1943 to the close of the academic year 1942-43, without pay.

#### ADDITIONAL ACTIONS BY THE PRESIDENT

- 104. Walter W. Beaudry, instructor, Naval Training School (Radio), February 23, 1943.
- 105. Elmer C. Zindars, instructor, Naval Training School (Radio), March 1, 1943.
- 106. Jean B. Jones, instructor in English, Extension Division, February 1, 1943.
- 107. Robert S. Lewis, instructor in civilian pilot training, March 1, 1943.

#### ADDITIONAL ACTIONS BY THE PRESIDENT

#### APPOINTMENTS:

- 141. Charles R. McReynolds, instructor, Naval Training School (Radio), February 25, 1943, to June 30, 1943, \$150 a month for February and March 1943 and \$170 a month for the balance of the appointment.
- 142. Lee D. Calfee, instructor in military science and tactics, beginning March 4, 1943, without salary.
- 143. Robert C. Rice, Jr., instructor in military science and tactics, beginning March 4, 1943, without salary.
- 144. Theodore W. Zillman, instructor in military science and tactics, beginning March 8, 1943, without salary.
- 145. Ira C. Davis, to receive an honorarium for writing correspondence course in physics for secondary school teachers, 48 assignments, February 1943, at \$500.
- 146. Robert F. Williams, assistant in organizing ESMWT classes in the Appleton District, March 1 to June 30, 1943, at \$15 a month.
- 147. The following persons appointed to teach classes as indicated below, salary not to exceed the amount shown:
  - John H. Armstrong, engineering production supervision, Beloit, ESMIT, 12 weeks, February 6, 1943, \$180.
  - Francis R. Arnhold, Diesel engineering, Chippewa Falls, ESMUT, 12 weeks, January 11, 1943, \$240.
  - Alden Aust, navigation, theory of flight, powerplants, Madison 43E intermediate CAAWTS, January and February 1943, \$360.
  - Norman D. Bailey, mathematics for high school teachers, Course B, Black River Falls, ESMVT, 16 weeks, February 13, 1943, \$320.
  - Viola Bartelme, practical engineering mathematics, Clintonville, ESLWT, 12 weeks, January 27, 1943, \$180.
  - Leonard L. Bennett, plant protection for war industries, LaCrosse, ESMT, 12 weeks, January 12, 1943, \$180.
  - William . Biddle, psychology of industrial relations, (171). and (Advanced 172), . . . Shorewood, ESM T, 12 weeks, January 13, 1943, \$360.
  - William S. Boma, plant protection for war industries, LaCrosse, ESMWT, 12 weeks, February 1, 1943, 180.
  - Robert E. Borchardt, engineering sketching and advanced blueprint reading, ESN T, Madison, 12 weeks, February 15, 1943, \$180.
  - Charles E. Brennan, fundamentals of radio, Fart II, Vauwatosa, ESMT, 16 weeks, January 19, 1943, \$240.

- Merlin W. Brose, office management, Manitowoc, ESMNT, 16 weeks, February 1, 1943, 5240.
- Clifford B. Boulet, industrial safety engineering, Appleton and Green Bay, ESM<sup>w</sup>T, 16 weeks, February 3, 1943, \$480.
- Paul W. Boutwell, advanced chemistry, Beloit, ESMWT, 12 weeks, January 26, 1943, \$360.
- James O. Chapel, elementary chemistry, Kenosha, ESM"T, 12 weeks, January 18, 1943, 360.
- Kenneth D. Clark, engineering sketching and advanced blueprint reading, Shorewood, 12 weeks, January 13, 1943, \$180.
- Richard C. Clark, topographic map drafting, LaCrosse, ESMT, 12 weeks, January 18, 1943, \$540.
- Frank M. Cnare, military map making, Madison, ESMUT, 15 weeks, February 3, 1943, \$280.
- James R. Cox, fundamentals, time and motion study, Janesville, ESMTT, 12 weeks, February 5, 1943, \$180.
- Edwin M. Dahlberg, engineering physics, Ladysmith, ESMIT, 12 weeks, January 22, 1943, \$360.
- Kenneth R. Doane, applied engineering mathematics, LaCrosse, ESMWT, 12 weeks, January 28, 1943, 360.
- Wencel F. Duben, fundamentals of radio, Part I, Manitowoc, ESMWT,
- 16 weeks, January 21, 1943, \$720.
  Ralph O. Eggert, office management, West Bend, ESMNT, 12 weeks, October 7, 1942, \$240.
- George Elleson, engineering sketching and advanced blueprint reading, Wauwatosa, 12 weeks, January 20, 1943, \$180.
- Frederick K. Falz, engineering sketching and advanced blue print reading, ijaa ( in angan ang as Sheboygan, ESSTT, 12 weeks, Februany 9, 1943, \$180.
- Vernor C. Finch, military map making, Madison, ESMIT, 15 weeks, February 3, 1943, \$34.
- Robert J. Fischer, advanced time and motion study, Kenosha, ESWYT, 12 weeks, February 9, 1943, \$180.
- Maurice H. Fouracre, psychology of industrial relations, Racine, ESMWT, 12 weeks, January 27, 1943, \$15.
- Clayton R. Francke, engineering sketching and advanced blueprint reading, West Allis, 18 weeks, January 12, 1943, \$180.
- James A. Gahan, engineering sketching and advanced blueprint reading, Phillips, ESMUT, 12 weeks, January 26, 1943, \$180.
- Horace W. Gerarde, elementary chemistry, Feloit, ESMWT, 12 weeks, February 9, 1943, \$360.
- Henry O. Gerlat, practical engineering mathematics, Oshkosh, ESMVT, 12 weeks, January 18, 1943, \$180.
- Harold A. Gessert, engineering sketching and advanced blueprint reading, 2 sections, Janesville, ESMIT, 12 weeks, February 1, 1943, \$360.
- Robert W. Gillette, engineering production supervision, LaCrosse, ESMWT, 12 weeks, January 19, 1943, \$180.
- Kurt E. Glassner, tools and dies, Beloit, ESMNT, 12 weeks, February 5, 1943, \$240.

- Elmer L. Haase, advanced time and motion study, Manitowoc and Two Rivers, 12 meetings each, one to begin February 4, 1943, the other, January 15, 1943, total 3360.
- Ralph C. Huffer, engineering calculus, Beloit, ESM T, 12 weeks, January 27, 1943, \$360.
- Kai Jensen, psychology 119, child development, Green Bay, 17 weeks, February 9, 1943, 525 (to pay own traveling expenses): psychology for industrial relations, Green Bay, ESPET, 12 weeks, February 3, 1943, 5252.
- LeRoy Jensen, applied engineering mathematics, LaCrosse, ESMMT, 12 weeks, January 14, 1943, \$360.
- Clifford E. Jurgenson, psychology of industrial relations, Fond du Lac, and Oshkosh, 12 weeks, January 20, 1943, \$360.
- Herbert P. Kakuske, applied engineering mathematics, Janesville, ESMTT, 12 weeks, January 19, 1943, 360.
- John T. Kendrigan, mathematics for high school teachers, Ashland, ESMWT, 16 weeks, February 6, 1943, \$320.
- Louis J. Kolonko, elementary chemistry, Ashland, ESEWT, 12 weeks, February 4, 1943, 360.
- Gerard Koshkarian, metals and their alloys, Kenosha, ESMWT, 12 weeks, January 18, 1943, \$180.
- Frederick C. Kromrey, engineering sketching and advanced blueprint reading, January 11, 1943, \$180, Hurley.
- Edison S. Lamoreaux, engineering sketching and advanced blueprint reading, Janesville, 2 sections, ESMWT, 12 weeks, January 19, 1943, \$360.
- Herbel A. Lange, elementary hydraulics, Beloit, ESMWT, 12 weeks, February 4, 1943, \$360.
- John S. Langwill, engineering production planning and control, Racine, ESEWT, 12 weeks, February 2, 1943, \$180.
- Henry F. Logee, plant protection for war industries, Superior, ESMIT, 12 weeks, February 9, 1943, \$180.
- John H. Lotter, metals and their alloys, Shorewood, machine shop inspection, Whitefish Bay, ESMAT, 12 weeks, January 24, 1943, \$360.
- Robert A. Lowe, advanced time and motion study, Shorewood, ESMNT, 12 weeks, January 20, 1943, \$225.
- John R. McCormick, fundamentals of radio, Part I, New London, ESMYT, 16 weeks, February 24, 1943, \$240.
- Herbert B. McKean, wood technology, Beloit and LaCrosse, 12 weeks each, one class to begin January 16 and one February 10, 1943, \*423.
- Lucius A. Markham, engineering production supervision, Janesville, ESNWT, 12 weeks, January 25, 1943, \$180.
- Walter J. Matzke, applied engineering mathematics, Vauwatosa, ESMVT, 12 weeks, January 15, 1943, 360.

- William J. Melville, industrial safety engineering, Eau Claire and LaCrosse, ESMT, 16 weeks, January 14, 1943, 3480.
- Russell L. Moberly, psychology for industrial relations, Delawan and Janesville, 12 meetings each, January 11, 1943, \$360.
- Rolland D. Nelson, industrial blueprint reading, Kenosha and Racine, ESMNT, 12 weeks, January 21, 1943, \$360.
- Rutherford B. Newhauser, fundamentals of radio, Part II, Shorewood, 16 weeks, January 26, 1943, \$720.
- Victor Nickel, fundamentals of radio, Part I, Wisconsin Rapids, 16 weeks, ESMNT, January 11, 1943, 360.
- Elmer L. Nordness, fluid mechanics, Madison, ESMT, 6 weeks, January 29, 1943, \$165.
- Frederick C. Oppen, elementary chemistry, Green Bay, 2 sections, ESENT, 12 weeks, February 9, 1943, 3720.
- Benjamin N. Peacock, engineering physics, Wauwatosa, ESMWT, 12 weeks, January 14, 1943, \$360:
- Charles S. Polacheck, elementary aeronautics 461-5, Racine, 12 weeks, February 9, 1943, \$450.
- Clarence E. Ragsdale, psychology for industrial relations, LaCrosse, 2 sections, 12 weeks, January 19, 1943, 5486.
- Corydon L. Rich, engineering physics, Menomonie, ESMWT, 12 weeks, January 11, 1943, \$360.
- Norbert J. Richard, fundamentals of radio; Part II, Yauwatosa, 16 weeks, January 18, 1943, \$480.
- Russell Rill, engineering drawing, Clintonville, ESMVT, 12 weeks, January 13, 1943, \$360.
- J. Harold Rose, applied engineering mathematics, Whitefish Bay, ESMWT, 12 weeks, January 20, 1943, \$360.
- Harold Samuelson, fundamentals of radio, Part I, Wisconsin Rapids, 16 weeks, January 11, 1943, \$360.
- Norbert G. Schmidt, fundamentals, time and motion study, Shorewood, ESNUT, 12 weeks, February 4, 1943, \$180.
- Joseph F. Schreier, engineering sketching and advanced blueprint reading, Sheboygan, ESWT, 12 weeks, February 1, 1943, \$180.
- Kermit Seefeld, industrial blueprint reading, Shorewood, machine shap inspection, Shorewood, 12 weeks, January 12, 1943, \$540.
- Martin J. Seibert, office management, Kenosha, ESMWT, 16 weeks, February 9, 1943, \$240.
- Willard E. Skidmore, engineering calculus, LaCrosse, ESMUT, 12 weeks, January 12, 1943, \$360.
- Hubert C. Stone, metallurgy, Racine, metals and their alloys, 12 weeks, January 18, 1943, \$360.
- Ellis Taft, navigation, theory of flight, power plants, Madison, CAANTS, January and February 1943, \$360.
- Robert D. Teece, machine shop inspection, Kenosha and Waukesha, 12 weeks, January 27, 1943, \$360.
- Percy T. Teska, psychology of industrial relations, Racine, ESFWT, 12 weeks, January 27, 1943, \$165.

- Sylvester E. Tomczak, engineering sketching and advanced blueprint reading, Park Falls, ESMUT, 12 weeks, January 18, 1943, \$180.
- T. L. Torgerson, pupil behavior 130, Wauwatosa, 17 weeks, February 4, 1943, 3426.
- Herman K. Von Kaas, engineering production planning and control, Shorewood, ESMET, 12 weeks, January 11, 1943, \$225.
- Frederick F. Wangaard, wood technology, Janesville, ESMWT, 12 weeks, January 27, 1943, \$180.
- Ann M. Wendt, industrial cost accounting, Merrill, ESMWT, 12 weeks, January 20, 1943, \$180.
- Warren W. Whitlinger, advanced time and motion study, Oshkosh, ESMWT, 12 weeks, January 28, 1943, \$180.
- Robert F. Williams, fundamentals of radio, Part I, New London, ESM'T, 16 weeks, February 24, 1943, \$480.
- Mathew Willing, curriculum and instructional procedure, Beloit, 17 weeks, February 18, 1943, 390.
- George H. Minn, fundamentals, time and motion study, Kenosha, ESMWT, 12 weeks, January 27, 1943, \$180.
- Martin J. Worthen, engineering sketching and advanced blueprint reading, Oshkosh, ESMWT, 12 weeks, January 20, 1943, \$180.
- Lon L. Worthing, machine shop methods for design departments, Janesville, 3 sections, 16 weeks, January 28, 1943, \$720.
- Harry C. Ziegert, elementary chemistry, Fond du Lac, ESNUT, 12 weeks, February 2, 1943, \$360.
- Harlan H. Zodtner, engineering physics, Janesville, ESMWT, 12 weeks, January 26, 1943, \$360.
- 148. Walter F. Hirchert, Jr., granted anonymous scholarship, 2nd semester of 1942-43, \$50.
- 149. Evelyn J. Dworetzky, Eva S. Perlman scholar, 2nd semester of 1942-43, \$25.
- 150. Richard H. Black, B'Nai B'rith scholar, 2nd semester of 1942-43, \$25.
- 151. Mary E. Strong, American Association of University Women scholar, 2nd semester of 1942-43, 350.
- 152. Gladys A. Dolge, Junior League scholar, 2nd semester of 1942-43, \$25.
- 153. Robert C. Watzke, Madison Alumni Club scholar, 2nd semester of 1942-43, \$37.50.
- 154. Dorothy M. Robinson, Chirago Alumnae Club scholar, 2nd semester of 1942-43, \$25.
- 155. Jeanette E. Moha, Christine M. Steenbock scholar, 2nd semester of 1942-43, \$125.

- 156. Ben R. Lawton, Israel Shrimski scholar, 2nd semester of 1942-43, 35.
- 157. Douglas L. Johnson, Victor E. Albright scholar, 2nd semester of 1942-43,
- 158. Alvin C. Peroutky, Sigurd L. Odegard scholar, 2nd semester of 1942-43,
- 159. The following persons granted Travelli scholarships for the 2nd semester of 1942-43, stipend \$25 each:

Benjamin D. Sisson Hazel W. Voss.

160. The following persons granted William J. Fisk scholarships, 2nd semester of 1942-43, stipend \$25 each:

> Eugene P. Young Robert J. Bradley Phillips T. Bland Owen T. Armstrong.

The following persons granted J. Stephens Tripp scholarships, 2nd semester of 1942-43:

John G. Quale \$32.50 Verlin H. Baumgarth 35.00.

The following persons granted Kappa Kappa Gamma scholarships, 2nd semester 162. of 1942-43, stipend \$25 each:

Nelda J. Spees Lois A. Partridge Jean J. Miller.

The following persons granted the Catherine Oertel scholarship for the 2nd semester of 1942-43, stipend \$25 each:

Dorothy M. Keenan Eleanor Hatch Bette L. Allington.

The following persons granted the F. A. Oertel scholarships for the 2nd semester of 1942-43, stipend \$25 each:

> David M. Kowalke Esther E. Strebel Lester J. Meinhardt Robert W. Klinner.

165. The following persons granted Ida M. Sivyer scholarships for the 2nd semester of 1942-43, stipend \$25 each:

Kathryn M. Andersen C. Richard Evenson Elizabeth M. Eisenman Joyce L. Grindle Gordon W. Haddock Floyd P. Hallett Keith J. Hayes J. Aaron Herschfus Gilman A. Hill Grace I. Iverson Eugene D. Kranzush Louis J. Mikunda Karl L. Pennau Robert 7. Ray Donald C. Robinson Robert K. Salter Gertrude H. Schaak Mary L. Soderberg Robert R. Spitzer Robert R. Thompson Vincent J. "ebers Mary L. Winkleman.

166. The following persons granted the Wisconsin Union Board scholarships for the 2nd semester of 1942-43, stipend 325 each:

Arline H. Testfahl C. James Strang.

167. The following persons granted the Phi Kappa Phi scholarships for the 2nd semester of 1942-43, stipend \$25 each:

Dorothy J. Olson Joyce J. Bird.

168. The following persons granted the University League scholarships, for the 2nd semester of 1942-43, stipend \$37.50 each:

Dorothy L. West Helen M. Volak.

169. The following persons granted the LaVerne Moyes scholarships for the 2nd semester of 1942-43, stipend 340 each:

Frances M. Cimino Lewis W. Rose.

170. The following persons appointed Fannie P, Lewis scholars for the 2nd semester of 1942-43, stipend \$87.50 each:

Hazel M. Dosch Elaine E. Bosshardt.

171. The following persons appointed Amelia E. H. Doyon scholars for the 2nd semester of 1942-43, stipend 45 each:

Eleanore A. Kostka Rose Marie Anderegg.

#### ADDITIONAL ACTIONS BY THE PRESIDENT

#### SALARY AND SERVICE ADJUSTMENTS:

- 62. Louise E. Hauser, assistant in the Naval Training School (Radio), March 1 to June 30, 1943, salary changed from the rate of \$85 a month to an hourly basis of 50¢ per hour, total not to exceed \$85 a month.
- 63. Lurline Boehm, appointed to read A.F.I. study papers in commercial subjects, July 1, 1942 to June 30, 1943, salary increased from \$350 to \$650 for the period.
- 64. John C. Gibson, Jr., appointed to read A.F.I. study papers in book-keeping courses, August 1, 1942 to February 28, 1943, salary increased from \$600 to not to exceed \$770.
- 65. Frank W. Hashek, appointed to read A.F.I. study papers in railroad rate and traffic management, July 1, 1942 to June 30, 1943, salary increased from \$500 to not to exceed \$1,000.